
 

 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Thursday, 1 April 2021.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 

     

 

 

 

Friday, 9 April 2021 at 10.00 am 
Virtual meeting - This meeting is being held remotely using 

Skype for Business 
 

 
Committee 
Members: 

 
Councillor Mrs Pam Bosworth (Chairman) 
Councillor Dean Ward (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Harrish Bisnauthsing, Councillor Robert Broughton, Councillor George 
Chivers, Councillor Helen Crawford, Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-Brown, Councillor 
Ms Jane Kingman, Councillor Philip Knowles, Councillor Nikki Manterfield and Councillor 
Lee Steptoe 
 

Agenda 

 Virtual Meeting - Joining Arrangements 
Councillors should access the meeting using the link in their calendar. 

Members of the press and public can gain access to the meeting by using the following link: 

Licensing Committee - 9 April 2021 

If you are using a smartphone or tablet it may be necessary to download the Skype for Business app 

before you can enter the meeting; please allow yourself time to do this. If you are using a laptop or 

desktop computer, you should be able to access the meeting via your web browser. 

When you follow the link to the meeting you will enter a virtual lobby; you will be invited into the 

meeting from the lobby just before the meeting begins. Members of the public should not use the 

Chat function in Skype for Business. This is for use by Councillors, who will use it to indicate that 

they would like to speak. 

If you have any questions about how to join the meeting, please e-mail 

democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk. 

Licensing 

Committee 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://meet.southkesteven.gov.uk/d3/7Z83Y38Y?sl=1
mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

 

 
1.   Register of attendance and apologies for absence  

   
2.   Disclosure of interests 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 

meeting. 

 

   
3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 4 December 2021 (Pages 3 - 5) 

   
4.   Application to renew a Sex Shop Licence 

Pulse & Cocktails, A1 southbound, Stoke Rochford, Grantham 
Report ENV788 from the Licensing Officer. 

(Pages 7 - 45) 

   
5.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent. 
 

   



 
 

Minutes 
Licensing Committee 
Friday, 4 December 2020 

  
 
 

 
Committee members present 
  
Councillor Harrish Bisnauthsing 
Councillor Mrs Pam Bosworth (Chairman) 
Councillor Robert Broughton 
Councillor George Chivers 
Councillor Helen Crawford 
Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-Brown 
Councillor Ms Jane Kingman 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Nikki Manterfield 
Councillor Dean Ward (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Officers  
 
Licensing Officer (Chris Clarke) 
Legal Advisor (Mandy Braithwaite) 
Technical Officer (Julie Edwards) 
Democratic Officer (Lucy Bonshor) 
 

 
 
7. Register of attendance and apologies for absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Steptoe, all other Committee 
members were present. 
 
8. Disclosure of interests 
 
None disclosed. 
 
9. Minutes of the meeting held on 13 November 2020 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 November 2020 were agreed as a correct record 
of the decisions taken. 
 

3

Agenda Item 3



 
 

Exclusion of Press and Public 
 
The press and public were excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 
following items of business because of the likelihood that information that was exempt 
under paragraph 1 and 2 of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended) would be disclosed to them. 
 
10. Hackney Carriage Driver 
 
Decision 
 
That a severe warning is given to the Hackney Carriage Driver about his future 
conduct and that as soon as practicable the Lincolnshire Road Safety Partnership 
is undertaken and the Committee notified of when the test has been taken. 
 
The applicant was in attendance. 
 
The Licensing Officer presented report ENV774 which concerned whether or not the 
hackney carriage driver remained a fit and proper person to hold a hackney carriage 
licence.  The Licensing Section had been contacted in November 2020 by the driver to 
update the section on points that he had acquired on his DVLA driving licence. The total 
outstanding DVLA points were now 13.   Details of the offences and fines were 
contained within the exempt appendices appended to the report.  The driver had held a 
South Kesteven hackney carriage licence since 2010.   
 
The driver then presented his case to the Committee and the circumstances around the 
issue of the offences and the reason why his DVLA licence had not been taken away 
and answered Members questions thereon.  Clarity was sought in relation to the 
Lincolnshire Road Safety Partnership driving test that the driver had taken in 2019 and it 
was noted that a further test was required to be taken.  A letter had been sent to the 
driver and he confirmed that he had received the letter.  
 
The Licensing Officer then gave this closing statement.  Members were asked to 
consider the report and appendices before them and any representations made during 
the meeting and decide whether to: 
 

- Suspend the driver for a defined period of time. 
- Revoke the hackney carriage driver’s licence on the grounds that the applicant 

was not a fit and proper person to hold such a licence under Section 61 (1) (b) of 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

- Issue a warning. 
- Take no action. 

 
The driver gave a brief closing statement reminding Members that he had held a licence 
for 10 years and during that time he had not had any issues and he did complete the 
Lincolnshire Road Safety Partnership driving test in 2019. 
 
(10:26  Licensing Officer and driver left the meeting) 

4



 
 

Members discussed the application before them. Concern was expressed about the 
driver’s attitude to speeding and the public’s safety.  It was noted that the driver also 
had an offence for using a mobile phone whilst driving which was classed as a serious 
offence.  It was acknowledged that the Magistrates had not revoked the driver’s DVLA 
licence but that he had to attend another Lincolnshire Road Safety Partnership driving 
test.  It was proposed that the licence be suspended until the driver had completed the 
test, however due to the current pandemic all tests were currently suspended.  The 
amount of time that the driver had held a licence was taken into consideration and that 
no issues had become known until the previous year.  Members felt that the offences 
did not result in the need to revoke the licence, but suspension of the licence for a 
fortnight was discussed.  The Legal Advisor reminded Members of the current guidance 
in relation to convictions and what was considered a major offence and the recent 
licensing training that Members had undertaken. Further discussion followed and it was 
proposed that the driver be given a severe warning about his driving conduct and the 
need to adhere to the speed limit at all times. The driver was also to undertake a 
Lincolnshire Road Safety Partnership driving test as soon as possible once they 
recommenced and the Committee were to be notified when this happened.  They did 
not want to see the driver before the Committee again. The proposal was seconded and 
on being put to the vote the Chairman’s casting vote was used for a severe warning to 
be given. 
 
(10:58 the Licensing Officer and driver returned to the meeting) 
 
The Legal Advisor read out the Committee’s decision.  The Committee had taken into 
consideration the report, appendices, representations made, legislation, South 
Kesteven’s Policy, guidance and the Councillors Handbook. The Committee had found 
that the number of points on the applicant’s DVLA licence was concerning and public 
safety was paramount. Twenty Nineteen seemed to be a bad year for the driving 
offences and the Committee acknowledged that mistakes are made.  It was imperative, 
as a hackney carriage driver that the speed limit was adhered to at all times.  Mobile 
phones should never be used whilst driving; it was an extremely serious offence, 
irresponsible and put the public at risk.   The Committee had decided to issue the driver 
with a severe warning. Suspension of his licence had been narrowly missed. The 
Committee wanted the driver to take the Lincolnshire Road Safety Partnership driving 
test as soon as possible and they wanted to be notified when this had taken place.  The 
Committee did not want to see the driver before them again as future sanctions could 
be great and the driver may risk losing his licence. 
 
11. Close of meeting 
 
The meeting closed at 11:00am. 
 
 

5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 Licensing Committee 
 ENV 778 

 9 April 2021 

  

   

         
  

 

Licensing Act 2003:  

Committee to determine an application to renew a Sex Establishment Licence – Pulse & Cocktails, 
A1 Southbound, Stoke Rochford.   

 

Report Author 

Chris Clarke, Licensing Officer 

Tel: 01476 406080 

Email: licensing@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Regulatory All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Heather Green, Licensing Team Leader 17/03/2021 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

 
The Committee to decide whether to approve the renewal application for a Sex Shop 
Licence in accordance with Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended by the Policing and Crime Act 2009). 

 

7

Agenda Item 4

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

 

1.1     The Policing and Crime Act 2009 amends Schedule 3 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 to permit the Licensing Authority to license Sex shops. 

 
1.2 A Sex Shop means any premises, vehicle, vessel or stall used for a business which consists 

to a significant degree of selling, hiring, exchanging, lending, displaying or demonstrating – 

a. sex articles; or                                                                                                                                                              
 
b. other things intended for use in connection with, or for the purpose of stimulating or 

encouraging- 
 
c. sexual activity; or 
 
d. acts of force or restraint which is associated with sexual activity.  This includes adult 

films and magazines.                                                                                                     
                                                                                                                                                                                

1.3 Each application will be determined on its own merits. However, applications may only be 
refused on certain defined mandatory or discretionary grounds.  These are: 

 

 Mandatory grounds 

 The Council must refuse an application if: - 

a. the applicant is under 18 years of age; or 

b. the applicant is for the time being disqualified from holding a licence under Schedule 

3 Paragraph 17 (3) of the Act following revocation of a previous licence; or 

c. the person applying is not resident in the United Kingdom, or was not so resident 

during period of six months immediately preceding the date when the application was 

made; or 

d. where a body corporate is the applicant - it is not incorporated in the United Kingdom; 

or 

e. the applicant has been refused the grant or renewal of a licence for the same premises 

within a period of 12 months immediately preceding the date when the application was 

made, unless the refusal has been reversed on appeal. 

Discretionary grounds 

The Council may refuse an application for the grant or renewal of a licence if: - 

a. the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of conviction of an offence or 

for any other reason; 

b. the business would be managed by or carried on for the benefit of a person, other than 

the applicant, who would be refused the grant, renewal or transfer of such a licence if 

he made the application himself; 

8



 

 
 

c. the number of sex establishments or sex establishments of a particular type in the 

relevant locality at the time the application is made is equal to or exceeds the number 

which the Council consider is appropriate for that locality; 

d. “the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate, having regard – 

(i)  to the character of the relevant locality; or 

(ii)  to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or 

(ii)  to the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect 

of which the application is made.” 

1.4      The applicant has run a sex shop at these premises since April 2009.  There have been no 

complaints about these premises during this time. 

1.5 We received the renewal application and a fee of £1725.95p for Pulse & Cocktails to hold a 

Sex Shop Licence on 10th February 2021 and we have received no objections during the 28-

day consultation period. (Appendix 3 refers)  

1.6 They are not varying the licence in any way and are only applying to renew the licence as it 

stands.  The days and times the premises are open are: 

 Mon – Sunday, 09.00 to 2200hrs (including Bank Holidays) 

2 Options available to the Committee 

2.1 When determining the application, the Committee shall have regard to: 

a. The authority’s sex establishment procedures. (Appendix 1 refers) 

b. The Human Rights Act 1998. 

c. SKDC’s regulations prescribing standard conditions. (Appendix 2 refers) 

d. Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. 

2.2 The options open to the Committee are: 

a. To renew the application as applied for. 

b. To renew the application with modifications and/or additional conditions. 

c. Refuse the renewal.  If, having considered the renewal application the committee   

decides to refuse it, it must provide the applicant with the reasons for the decision in 

writing. 

3 Financial Implications  

3.1 If a licence is granted the appropriate licence fee as outlined in the report will need to be 

levied upon the establishment.  The only other potential financial impact is in the event of 

an applicant making an appeal against a decision which was then subsequently upheld, 

the Council may incur additional legal costs. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

 

 

9



 

 
 

4 Legal and Governance Implications  

4.1 The grant, renewal and transfer of licences for sex establishments are governed by the 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by the Policing & 

Crime Act 2009.  The Committee should consider any representations from the Chief 

Officer of Police or any other person who objects to the application and has submitted a 

representation in writing.  The proper grounds for considering the application are found 

within the body of the report.  The decision to grant or refuse the licence must be 

reasonable and proportionate and made in accordance with the attached sex 

establishment procedures. Any refusal must be supported by evidence that the statutory 

grounds for refusal are met and full reasons must be given to the applicant.    

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

5 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

Not applicable. 

6 Risk and Mitigation 

None applicable. 

7 Community Safety Implications  

None applicable. 

8 Appendices 

Appendix 1 - SKDC – Sex Establishment Procedures. 

 Appendix 2 - SKDC – Standard Conditions. 

 Appendix 3 - Pulse & Cocktail application. 

9 Background Papers 

Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 

 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1982/30/pdfs/ukpga_19820030_en.pdf 

Human Rights Act 1998 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uk/ukpga/1998/pdfs/ukpga_19980042_en.pdf 

10

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1982/30/pdfs/ukpga_19820030_en.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uk/ukpga/1998/pdfs/ukpga_19980042_en.pdf


11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 4 December 2021
	4 Application to renew a Sex Shop Licence<br/>Pulse & Cocktails, A1 southbound, Stoke Rochford, Grantham
	Appendix 1 Pulse and Cocktails 2021
	Appendix 2 Pulse and Cocktails 2021
	Appendix 3 Pulse and Cocktails 2021


